Y.

Court of Appeal Cause No. 43033-9-II

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

EARL IDDINGS, TIMOTHY and PAMELA CLEMENTS, and CHRIS POWELL, Appellants

v.

MICHAEL and SUE GRIFFTH, MASON COUNTY, MASON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, and MASON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, Respondents

ETITION FOR REVIEW MAR 2 6 2014 SUPREME COURT Jose F. Vera of Vera & Associates PLLC WSBA #25534, Attorney for Appellants 2110 Pacific Avenue North, Suite 100 Seattle, WA 98103 (206) 217-9300

A. Identity of Petitioner

Petitioner, Earl Iddings, asks this Court to accept review of the decision entered by Division II of Washington Court of Appeals on February 20, 2014 (Court of Appeals No. 43033-9-II).

B. Court of Appeals Decision

Petitioner requests this Court to review the February 20, 2014 Decision of Division II of the Washington Court of Appeals (the "Decision"). The request is based on the need to square the Decision with this Court's decisions in *Yakima County v*. *Conrad*, 26 Wn. 155, 66 P. 411 (1901) and *City of Olympia v*. *Lemon*, 93 Wn. 508, 161 P. 363 (1916) and on the need to clarify that future decisions determining public prescription and common law dedication must be based on evidence related to actual historic use and public acceptance and not on evidence of public officials accommodating the desires of interested parties. A copy of the decision is in the Appendix

C. Issues Presented for Review

Whether the scope of a public right of way taken by prescription is determined by actual public use or by a survey taken for a purpose unrelated to determining the public's use of the land? Once prescriptive rights vest in the public, is the scope of those rights limited to the land actually used by the public or does the public obtain rights in the applicable public road?

Whether a reviewing court in a dispute determining the scope of a common law dedication must defer to the trial court's factual findings regarding the scope of the dedicated right of way when the trial court materially relies on evidence unrelated to acceptance of the right of way and fails to account for evidence from the same source that expressly contradicts the subject evidence.

D. Statement of the Case

This case involves picturesque, Dewatto Bay Washington. The outcome of this matter will shape whether Dewatto Bay remains picturesque and the home of the Pigeon Guillemot in the future.

Respondent, Griffith, purchased a waterfront residential lot on Hood Canal in May 2006. The upland portion of Griffith's property was separated from Hood Canal by the terminus of Dewatto Beach Drive, a vehicle turnaround at the terminus, and a high, sandy near vertical bluff, which served as a seasonal nesting site for the Pigeon Guillemot. Griffith wanted waterfront access from Dewatto Beach Drive to the upland portion of his property. Due to the width of his property and the height of the bluff, the driveway will require large, white cement blocks stacked high to support a steep, winding, and climbing driveway that scales the face of the bluff. The driveway and its construction would impact the Pigeon Guillemot negatively.

Critical to the driveway's construction was the question of the right of way for Dewatto Beach Drive and the turnaround. Griffith required a specific width for the right of way for his driveway plans—22.55 feet from the Dewatto Bay Drive centerline. Griffith adopted and represented the width of the Dewatto Bay Drive right of way as 22.55 feet from the drive's centerline. Iddings, an impacted property owner whose lot lays just at the road's end, disputed this width and claims that the historic width of the right of way and turnaround exceed 22.55 feet. A trial was held to resolve the different positions.

At trial, the court found that a right of way was taken by prescription and by common law dedication to a distance of 22.55 feet from the center line of Dewatto Bay Drive. This distance was contradicted by every fact witness that testified that are long as all of them could remember, the right of way went from the centerline of Dewatto Bay Drive to the vertical or near vertical face of the bluff. None of the witnesses gave this distance a measurement, except for Mr. Brush who placed this distance at 8 feet beyond the 22.55 feet found by the trial court.

The trial court, as indicated in its findings, relied heavily both on a February 2009 site conditions survey made by surveyor Mr. Sidney Bechtolt that was also referred to in the trial evidence as the Agate survey; and on the testimony of the Mason County Right of Way Manager, Mr. Brush. The trial court found Mr. Bechtolt credible and found that Mr. Brush testified very credibly as to Mason County's process for determining the scope of historical public use and of the acceptance of the common law dedication of Dewatto Bay Drive. Based on their collective testimony, the trial court made the specific finding of a right of way measuring 22.55 feet from the centerline of Dewatto Bay Beach drive.

Iddings' concern was and is that the Bechtolt survey was only a site conditions survey from February 2009 without any evidence of any kind linking the measurements in the survey to the public's historic use or acceptance of any common law dedication. Mr. Brush's testimony only compounds the problem because Mr. Brush testified by live testimony and Trial Exhibits that the Bechtolt survey was the only source of information for Mason County linking the width of the right of way from the centerline to 22.55 feet. Mr. Brush further testified that Mason County had used the Bechtolt survey both in a side deal it had with Griffith, which had nothing to do with the historic use or acceptance of a common law dedication, and as a compromise distance between Iddings and Griffith. In fact, Mr. Brush, who was Mason County's agent on this topic, issued an official letter on Mason County Department of Public Works letterhead (Trial Exhibit 17) wherein he wrote that the right of way extended about 8 feet beyond the distance set forth in the Bechtolt survey. At no time in the underlying trial proceedings did Mr. Brush testify to any determination or calculation of how the Bechtolt survey related to the public's historic use of the right of way or to any acceptance by the public or Mason County of any common law dedication. The credibility finding re Mr. Brush must apply to all of Mr. Brush's testimony, including his lack of testimony on material facts.

The trial court made no findings as to when any prescriptive title vested in the public or as to the scope of use the obtained the prescriptive title. Notably, the trial court failed to make any findings as to whether a general common law dedication occurred prior to the vesting of prescriptive title such that the width of the county public road taken by prescription could be determined by reference to the applicable statutory width applicable to the date of the prescriptive vesting or of the common law dedication.

E. Argument Why Review Should Be Accepted

Two aspects militate in favor of this Court accepting review: (1) the need to square the result below with prior decisions of this Court to the effect that prescriptive rights are not limited to the beaten path but rather will be included within the beaten path; and (2) the need to clarify for trial courts that the evidence considered and relied upon to find prescriptive rights and common law dedications must be evidence of actual historical use and actual acceptance of common law dedications even if such findings are not immediately reducible to measurable distances with the evidence before the court.

It has long been the rule in this Court that when a right of way is obtained by prescription that the width of the right of way cannot be limited to the actual beaten path,

but rather may be as broad as required by the public. Yakima County v. Conrad, 26 Wn. 155, 159, 66 P. 411 (1901) and City of Olympia v. Lemon, 93 Wn. 508, 511, 161 P. 363 (1916). In each of these cases, this Court relied on the method of looking to the general laws of the state, which establish the width of public county roads, for determining the width of the right of way at the time the rights to the right of way vested in the public. *Id.*

Here, the trial court found that prescriptive rights vested in the Dewatto Bay public but it failed to make any findings or determinations as to when those rights vested and as to the scope of those rights, except to tie the width of the prescriptive rights to the Bechtolt survey without any supporting rationale or findings. The trial court's failure to make a finding or conclusion regarding when the prescriptive rights vested in the Dewatto Bay public is material under RCW 36.86.010 because under the above decisions of this Court; prescriptive rights 30 feet in width from the center line of Dewatto Bay Drive would vest in the Dewatto Bay public, if they vested after April 1, 1937.

Iddings is mindful that even in the Yakima County and City of Olympia this Court applied the width of the applicable county road as a matter of baseline application subject to revision as to the amount of property actually used. Even so, Mr. Brush testified in by exhibit and live testimony that he determined that the Dewatto Bay right of way was in fact 8 feet wider than the 22.55 feet surveyed by the site conditions survey. Hence, the trial court's failure to determine or find the facts underlying its conclusion of a prescriptive easement is material to the outcome of this dispute and inconsistent with multiple decisions of this Court.

This Court should also accept review to send a message to county governments around the state that their *County Right of Way Managers* should execute their core responsibilities and not engage in side deals or in mediating disputes between neighboring landowners over the scope of prescribed right of ways. Even if such efforts are well intended, they erode public confidence in their local officials and render it more difficult for courts to assess the relevant evidence and to make the required material determinations related to right of ways. Even Mr. Brush conceded that he was attempting to mediate between the parties when he had no training or experience in such efforts. The result is that we have a well-intended right of way manager who may have meant well, but who in reality contributed materially to a muddled set of facts before the trial court. The trial court's Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law reflect such muddled facts.

The danger from such conduct, like that of Mr. Brush, is not so much to the parties involved, but rather in this case to the voiceless and unrepresented—the Pigeon Guillemot. However, county roads crisscross this state and many of its fragile and at-risk areas and eco-systems. A road in the wrong area, of the wrong width, or of the wrong surface and can have extremely destructive impacts by virtue of destroying critical habitat during its construction, the construction of related uses, and related maintenance. In fact, harm can result simply from the diversion of surface water that can flood habitat or created local landslides. For these reasons, this Court would be right to take review of this matter to send a message to local governments and their employees that they ought not overstep their mandate, even when, like Mr. Brush, they are well intentioned and sincere in their efforts. Such a message would not only benefit local government and their citizens but it would also benefit the affect eco-systems and animals that are otherwise voiceless.

F. Conclusion

This Court should accept review to square the results of this matter with the decisions of this Court and to send a message to local governments and their employees to work within their respective mandates to avoid the unintended consequences of harm to the environment and vulnerable wildlife.

Submitted March 24, 2014