I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

The Respondents are Mr. Michael & Mrs. Sue Griffith, represented by R. Earl 

Morriss, Washington Bar Association No. 34969. Respondents Mason County are 

represented by other counsel. 

II. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Is the decision of the Court of Appeals in conflict with a previous decision of 

the Supreme Court? 

2. Is the decision of the Court of Appeals in conflict with a previous decision of 

the Court of Appeals? 

3. Does the decision of the Court of Appeals involve a significant question of 

law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the Constitution of 

the United States? 

4. Does the petition involve an issue of substantial public interest that should be 

determined by the Supreme Court? 
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II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Michael Griffith purchased a small piece of high-bluff waterfront property on Dewatto 

Beach Drive in 2006. RP (Vol. IV) 4, 16. The general lay ofthe property is that there is a 

rock sea wall along the water, then a paved, gravel and dirt road- Dewatto Beach Drive, 

and then a bluff which is nearly vertical in some places and approximately fifty feet high. 

RP (Vol. IV) 4. Generally, almost all of the Griffith property is either a part of the bluff 

or the area above the bluff. RP (Vol. IV) 4 

The only way to access the property - without crossing any other property owned 

by the adjoiners- is to go up the bluff. RP (Vol. IV) 5. To gain vehicular access from 

the road, the Griffiths decided to build a driveway - and in preparation for that task they 

had the property surveyed, hired an engineer to design the driveway and started the 

application process with Mason County. RP (Vol. IV) 5-7. The design process caused 

the Griffith land surveyor - Sidney Bechtoldt, PLS - to attempt to calculate the right-of

way for the road. RP (Vol III) 57-59. 

In the course of the survey research it was found that there was a "waiver"- a form 

of right-of-way deed- which called for a 40 foot wide right-of-way. RP (Vol. I) 10-11, 

19; RP (Vol. III) 60-66, 73; Ex. 32. There was also a second waiver which was 

associated with the road- or at least kept in the same county file- the "Beebe Waiver" 

indicated a 60 foot wide right-of-way. RP (Vol. I) 17-18. The trial court found that the 

plaintiffs "failed to show that the Beebe Waiver was a dedication applicable to Dewatto 

Beach Drive at the location at issue."CP 653 (Finding of Fact No. 15). The trial court 
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found the right-of-way to be 20 feet on both sides of the road centerline, but also 

accepted testimony as to the historic use of the existing road. 

The Griffiths surveyor showed that the maximum historical use of the road right

of-way was 22.55 feet. RP (Vol. III) 57-59. The trial court heard testimony concerning 

the use of the road and found that evidence disputing the 22.55 foot distance was 

"vague", inexact", or not based upon personal knowledge. CP 654 (Findings of fact 20, 

2 I, 25, 28, 29). The court found that surveyor Bechtoldt was a credible witness. CP 655 

(Finding of fact No. 32). Based on the Bechtoldt survey, admitted as Exhibit 12, and all 

evidence admitted at trial" the court found the right-of-way to be 22.55 from the 

centerline of the road. CP 654 (Finding of fact 22); CP 655 (Findings of Fact No. 31, 32, 

33, 34). 

IV. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED 

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: ( 1) if 

the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a previous decision of the 

Supreme Court; or (2) if the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a 

previous decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) if the decision of the Court of 

Appeals involve a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State 

of Washington or the Constitution of the United States; or (4) if the petition 

involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the 

Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b) 
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1. The decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with a decision of 

the Supreme Court. 

Iddings argues that the decision is in conflict with other decisions of the Supreme Court. 

The argument amounts to a complete misreading of the cases cited. In addition, Iddings 

admits in his petition that the cases stated actually reached the same conclusion as the 

trial court and the Court of Appeals. 

The Iddings argument revolves around the fact that as a matter of law the width of a 

prescriptive easement can extend to a larger area, but the actual width is a question of fact 

to be determined by consideration of the facts and circumstances peculiar to each case. 

Yakima County v. Conrad, 26 Wash. 155, 159-160, 66 P. 411 (190 1 ); City of Olympia v. 

Lemon, 93 Wash. 508, 511, 161 P.363 (1916) The facts in this case showed a usage of 

22.55 feet from the centerline is a right-of-way within that which is reasonably necessary 

for public travel as determined by the trial court's "consideration of the facts and 

circumstances peculiar to the case." In re West Marginal Way at 120, quoting Yakima 

County v. Conrad at 159, and citing Olympia v. Lemon at 510. 

Therefore, review should not be granted on this basis. 

2. The decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with another 

decision of the Court of Appeals. 

Iddings does not argue how the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with 

another decision of the Court of Appeals. Therefore, review should not be granted on 

this basis. 
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3. The decision of the Court of Appeals does not involve a significant 

question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the 

Constitution of the United States? 

Iddings does not argue that the decision of the Court of Appeals involves a significant 

question of law under the State or Federal Constitution. Therefore, review should not be 

granted on this basis. 

4. Does the petition involve an issue of substantial public interest that 

should be determined by the Supreme Court? 

Iddings argues that there is, "(2) the need to clarify for trial courts that evidence 

considered and relied upon to find prescriptive rights and common law dedications must 

be evidence of actual historical use and actual acceptance of common law dedications 

even if such .findings are not immediately reducible to measureable distances with 

evidence before the court.". For sake of argument, the Respondent looks at this supposed 

argument for review as stating a perceived or possible public interest -though Petitioner 

does not identify it as such. Whatever the intent of this argument by Petitioner, it fails to 

state a "public interest" to be decided. Further, it fails to state any argument which 

changes existing law. Therefore, review should not be granted on this basis. 
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V. CONCLUSION 

For the above reasons, review should not be granted in this case.